WHAT YOUR COLLEAGUES ARE SAYING . . .

"Standout School Leaders: Challenging What It Means to Lead details the difference between Administrators Good at their Jobs (AGJs) and Standout School Leaders (SSLs). Jones provides a true contrast between the two leadership approaches, acknowledging the risks one must take in order to transition from being good to being great. The text is thought-provoking and reflective, connecting the academic with praxis."

Lela A. Bridges-Webb Retired Superintendent Flossmoor, Illinois

"In the crowded market of school leadership literature, this book stands out by offering a distinctive perspective that addresses contemporary challenges with fresh insights. It is poised to significantly enhance administrators' efficacy by offering a comprehensive toolkit of practical strategies and insightful perspectives. Administrators will be able to apply these concepts effectively in their daily work, fostering a more dynamic and impactful leadership style."

Sammie Cervantes

Teacher, Nipomo High School Pismo Beach, California

"Jones provides a thoughtful exploration of school leadership, emphasizing the importance of aligning daily practices with mission-driven goals. This book offers practical insights and strategies that will resonate with educators striving to make a meaningful impact on their schools and communities."

Josh Chambers

Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, Glenbard High School District 87 Glen Ellyn, Illinois

"Jones has captured the essence of effective, dynamic, and unique school leadership based on first-hand experiences, observations, and reflections. This book contains a comprehensive wealth of information that every current and aspiring school administrator can learn and benefit from!"

Dana Salles Trevethan

Superintendent, Turlock Unified School District Turlock, California "Jones insightfully depicts the realities of school leaders and shares reflective frustrations and successes of what standout school leadership can look like. He provides hope for what school leadership could become. This is a must-read for school leaders who have faced the realities of our current school systems."

Kristopher Kwiatek

Principal, Bob Hope Elementary School Armed Forces Pacific

"Standout School Leaders (SSLs) break the mold of the traditional managerial leader. This text highlights those strengths and skills that principals can cultivate to shepherd our next generation of learners and leaders. A great read for the complexities we are navigating."

Jill Gildea

Superintendent, Park City Schools Park City, Utah

"Standout School Leaders is a road map from someone who has done it! Starting my career as a teacher working with Jones, I've been applying these lessons my whole career. It is fantastic to see them in book form. The specificity, nuance, and real-world examples make this book required reading."

Steven Kellner

Director of District Leadership & State Policy, California Education Partners Alameda, California

Standout School Leaders

For

Dan Johnson

A true standout school leader

Standout School Leaders

Challenging What It Means to Lead

ALAN C. JONES



Copyrighted Material www.corwin.com



FOR INFORMATION:

Corwin
A SAGE Company
2455 Teller Road
Thousand Oaks, California 91320
(800) 233-9936
www.corwin.com

SAGE Publications Ltd. 1 Oliver's Yard 55 City Road London EC1Y 1SP United Kingdom

SAGE Publications India Pvt. Ltd.
Unit No 323-333, Third Floor, F-Block
International Trade Tower Nehru Place
New Delhi 110 019
India

SAGE Publications Asia-Pacific Pte. Ltd. 18 Cross Street #10-10/11/12 China Square Central Singapore 048423

Vice President and

Editorial Director: Monica Eckman Senior Acquisitions Editor: Pam Berkman

Content Development

Manager: Desirée A. Bartlett

Senior Editorial Assistant: Nyle De Leon Production Editor: Tori Mirsadjadi Copy Editor: Shannon Kelly Typesetter: C&M Digitals (P) Ltd. Cover Designer: Candice Harman Marketing Manager: Melissa Duclos Copyright © 2025 by Corwin Press, Inc.

All rights reserved. Except as permitted by U.S. copyright law, no part of this work may be reproduced or distributed in any form or by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system, without permission in writing from the publisher.

When forms and sample documents appearing in this work are intended for reproduction, they will be marked as such. Reproduction of their use is authorized for educational use by educators, local school sites, and/or noncommercial or nonprofit entities that have purchased the book.

All third-party trademarks referenced or depicted herein are included solely for the purpose of illustration and are the property of their respective owners. Reference to these trademarks in no way indicates any relationship with, or endorsement by, the trademark owner.

Printed in the United States of America

LCCN 2024051615

This book is printed on acid-free paper.

25 26 27 28 29 10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

DISCLAIMER: This book may direct you to access third-party content via web links, QR codes, or other scannable technologies, which are provided for your reference by the author(s). Corwin makes no guarantee that such third-party content will be available for your use and encourages you to review the terms and conditions of such third-party content. Corwin takes no responsibility and assumes no liability for your use of any third-party content, nor does Corwin approve, sponsor, endorse, verify, or certify such third-party content.

CONTENTS

Acknowledgments	
About the Author	xiii
Introduction	1
Central Theme	1
What Is a Mission-Driven School?	3
Audience	3
What Makes This Book Distinctive	4
Features and Benefits	4
1. Being Good at the Job	7
Being Very Good at Your Job	8
Enhancing Engagement With Dual Open Houses	10
SSL Tip: Why Being Good at Your Job Is Not Good Enough	14
Reflective Questions	15
Resources	16
2. Friendly Enemies	21
The Enemy Within	22
Three Strikes and You're Out	24
SSL Tip: My Enemy Is My Friend	26
Reflective Questions	27
Resources	28
3. What Is a Good School?	29
One Question, Many Answers	30
SSL Tip: Asking the Right Questions	33
Reflective Questions	34

4.	The Academic Mind	35
	The Aims of Managers Versus Academics	35
	Theory Talk	39
	Theory in Action	40
	Fixing Versus Solving the Problem of Fighting in Hallways	41
	What Does the Research Say?	43
	SSL Tip: Widening the Leadership Lens	44
	Reflective Questions	45
	Resources	46
5.	Beyond Managerial Truths	49
	Managerial Truths	49
	SSL Tip: Lessons Not Taught	54
	Reflective Questions	57
6.	Self-Authoring	59
	The Myth Versus Reality of Rational Schooling	60
	The Authoring Mind	61
	Self-Authoring in Main Offices	63
	Rollerblade Hockey	64
	SSL Tip: Self-Authoring	65
	Reflective Questions	66
7.	Connecting the Dots	67
	Painting by the Numbers	68
	Fundamental Realities of Schooling	69
	Connecting the Dots	71
	Muddling the State Testing Program	72
	The Un-Muddling of the State Testing Program	73
	The <i>How</i> of Connecting the Dots	74
	"Is This Really My Daughter's School?"	77
	Collective Sensemaking	83
	SSL Tip: Connecting the Dots	85
	Reflective Questions	86
	Resources	87
8.	Disciplined Talent	89
	Institutionalized Talent	90
	The House of Performance Cards	92
	Strengths-Based Performance	96

	What About Jane?	98
	Transferring Jane to a Different Department	99
	SSL Tip: Valuing Talent	99
	Jane Leaves the Science Department	101
	Reflective Questions	102
	Resources	103
9.	Controlling Narratives	105
	Controlling Narratives	111
	SSL Tip: Changing the Narrative	114
	Reflective Questions	115
	Resources	116
10.	Cracks in the System	119
	The Unruffled Calm	120
	$Aims \to Goals \to Functions$	120
	SSL Tip: Exploiting Cracks in the System	121
	Reflective Questions	124
	Resources	125
11.	Tools	127
	The <i>How</i> and <i>What</i> of Main Offices	128
	SSL Tip: Tools in the Toolbox	137
	Reflective Questions	138
	Resources	139
12.	View From the Balcony	143
	SSLs Prepare Differently	144
	SSLs Think Differently	149
	SSLs Lead Differently	153
	SSL Tip: Eclectic Leadership	157
	Reflective Questions	159
	Resources	160
13.	The Realities of Schooling	161
	The Institutional Reality of Schooling	161
	The Educational Hope of Schooling	164
	SSL Tip: The Global Reality of Schooling	165
	Reflective Questions	166
	Resources	167

14.	4. Standout School Leadership: The Hope of Schooling	
	"There Are Maybe Three or Four Who Stand Out"	169
	Vision Matters	170
	Ideas Matter	171
	An Agenda Matters	172
	Leadership Matters	172
	Enactment Matters	173
	SSL Tip: The Hope of Schooling	174
Ref	erences	175
nde	ex	177

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The idea for this book originated from a postgame analysis of a recent Super Bowl game. One of the commentators stated that both coaches on the field were standout coaches. He went on to explain that all coaches in the NFL are good at what they do, but there were only three, maybe four, that stood out from the pack. He then elaborated on what made these coaches special. He summed up his list of examples by remarking that the three or four standout coaches "just think very differently about the game and how it is played."

As a career educator who spent over forty years as a teacher, principal, and professor of education, I was fortunate to be mentored by, and then to work side by side with, a group of administrators who thought differently about how schools should be organized and how students should be taught. Among those educators with whom I worked to assimilate mission-driven goals into the offices they supervised and the classrooms in their schools were Marjorie Appel, Steven Arnold, Gail Aronoff, John Carter, Maura Bridges, Joe Crickard, Gerry Jordan, Richard Kamm, Maury Gladstone, John Highland, Paul Junkroski, Tom McCann, Marianne Melvin, George Strecker, and Dick Waterhouse.

This book would not be possible without the expert editing from my assistant, Amy Daly. Not only does Amy dot the *i*'s and cross the *t*'s, she plays the all-important role of questioning ideas and assumptions I make about schooling and leadership.

Finally, I deeply appreciate the editors at Corwin for giving voice to ideas that challenge the fundamental assumptions and principles of institutional schooling. I am particularly grateful to Desiree Bartlett, who patiently guided me through the long and often painful process of transforming many good ideas into a few well-argued ideas.

PUBLISHER'S ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Corwin gratefully acknowledges the contributions of the following reviewers:

Sammie Cervantes Teacher, Nipomo High School Pismo Beach, California

Peter Dillon Superintendent, Berkshire Hills Regional School District Stockbridge, Massachusetts

Jill Gildea Superintendent, Park City Schools Park City, Utah

Kristopher Kwiatek Elementary Principal, Bob Hope Elementary School, Armed Forces Pacific San Antonio, Texas

Lynn Macan Retired Superintendent Bluffton, South Carolina

Jacie Maslyk Instructional Coach and Consultant Coraopolis, Pennsylvania

Catherine Sosnowski MAT Adjunct Professor, Central CT State University New Britain, Connecticut

Dana Salles Trevethan Superintendent, Turlock Unified School District Turlock, California

ABOUT THE AUTHOR



Dr. Alan C. Jones is an educational consultant specializing in curriculum, instruction, and instructional leadership. His teaching career includes teaching English at DuSable Upper Grade Center in Chicago, Illinois; social studies at Thornton Township High School in Harvey, Illinois; and school administration at Saint Xavier University in Chicago. He began his administrative career as an activities director at Thornton Township High School, went on to become assistant principal at Bremen Township High School, and then served as principal of Community High School District 94 in West Chicago, Illinois, for seventeen

years. Under his leadership, Community High School was recognized as a Blue Ribbon School of Excellence in 1993 and and as a School of Excellence by *Hispanic Magazine* in 1995.

Dr. Jones's publications include articles in educational journals on instructional leadership and school reform, as well as five books: Students! Do Not Push Your Teacher Down the Stairs on Friday: A Teacher's Notebook (Quadrangle Books, 1972); Becoming a Strong Instructional Leader: Saying No to Business as Usual (Teachers College Press, 2012); Teaching Matters Most: A School Leader's Guide to Improving Classroom Instruction (Corwin, 2012); The First 100 Days in the Main Office: Transforming a School Culture (Information Age Press, 2018); and Living Up to Your School Mission Statement: Reforming Schools From the Inside Out (Rowman & Littlefield, 2021).

INTRODUCTION

n the NFL, all the coaches are very good at what they do. But there are three or four coaches that stand out from the pack—they are unique in how they think about the game and how they organize a team to play the game.

—Super Bowl TV Commentator

The idea for this book originated with a postgame analysis of a recent Super Bowl game. One of the TV commentators stated that both coaches were "standout" coaches. He explained that all coaches in the NFL are good at what they do, but there were only three, or maybe four, that stood out from the pack. He then elaborated on what made these coaches special. He summed up his list of examples by remarking that the three or four that he named "just think very differently about the game and how it is played."

As a career educator who has spent over forty years as a teacher, principal, and professor of education, I have met and worked with many school administrators from all positions in main offices—principals, assistant principals, department chairs—as well as those in central offices—superintendents, assistant superintendents, human resources (HR) directors, business managers, directors of facilities. They are all very good in the managerial roles they perform, but in all my associations with fellow school administrators, I have only met and worked with three or four who stood out from the pack. My interest in writing this book is to identify and analyze the leadership and managerial characteristics that make these administrators stand out. It is my hope that by identifying these traits and giving examples of them here, other educational leaders will be able to incorporate these attributes and actions into their own practice, thus also becoming standout school leaders (SSLs).

CENTRAL THEME

A substantial amount of school reform literature focuses on the critical role that school leadership plays in developing effective schools. The attributes necessary for effective school leadership fall into three leadership models: instructional leadership, business leadership, and new-age leadership. In the

most traditional model—instructional leadership—the knowledge and skills associated with curriculum, instruction, and team building are fundamental to success. This model is based on the principle that "how teachers teach" is the foundation of effective schools.

Although these attributes of instructional leadership remain the standard definition of effective school leadership, the last decade of literature on this topic has been populated by the traits of successful chief executive officers (CEOs). This business leadership model is based on the principle that private sector techniques and managerial dispositions should be emulated by administrators in the public sector.

The struggle to achieve the right balance between the educational fundamentals of instructional leadership and the entrepreneurial talents of business leadership has led to a new model of leadership, one that presents techniques for solving the educational-entrepreneurial dilemma. Instead of developing an educational knowledge base or practicing the CEO technique of the day, the new-age leadership model is based on the principle that disciplining the leadership ego is the foundation of effective schools.

Administrators good at their jobs (AGJs) may emulate one model, or a mix of models, but what they all have in common is the efficient implementation of *institutional* functions of schooling: credentialing, accreditation, standardization, regulation, and accounting. While these institutional functions effectively control student behavior and student outcomes, they are poorly suited for developing the diverse talents, abilities, and interests of children and adolescents. AGJs preoccupy themselves with a set of goals that are based on the *what* and *how* of schooling—the managerial means of schooling. SSLs preoccupy themselves with a set of goals based on the *why* of schooling—the valued ends of schooling.

What sets SSLs apart from their main office colleagues is how they think about and respond to school structures that are fundamentally opposed to mission-driven goals and values. AGJs view the dilemma of institutional schooling as an *either/or* proposition, where institutional means take precedence over educational ends. SSLs view the dilemma of institutional schooling as a *both/and* proposition, where institutional means work together with

SSLs view the dilemma of institutional schooling as a both/and proposition, where institutional means work together with educational ends to create mission-driven learning environments.

educational ends to create mission-driven learning environments. Each chapter in this book describes the organizational strategies and habits of thought that SSLs employ to maintain the smooth running of schools that fit a community's expectation of what schooling should look like, yet at the same time foster innovative teaching environments that fit a student body's expectation for how schooling should *feel*.

WHAT IS A MISSION-DRIVEN SCHOOL?

A fundamental principle in school organizations is the belief in and adherence to the educational goals and values written in school mission statements. School mission statements include one or more of the mission-driven goals and values listed in Figure I.1. All school administrators publicly promote the educational goals and values written in their school mission statements, but they rarely admit to the institutional values that too often drive the operations of the schools they lead. SSLs take on the challenge of creating schools organized around the mission rather than falling back on traditional, institutional practices in their day-to-day administration. Each chapter in this book describes the contrasts between how AGJs and SSLs approach the underlying struggle between institutional and educational goals and values, allowing AGJs to move further along the continuum toward becoming SSLs.

FIGURE I.1 AIMING FOR MISSION-DRIVEN SCHOOLS

INSTITUTIONAL-DRIVEN SCHOOLS		MISSION-DRIVEN SCHOOLS	
VALUE/ATTRIBUTE	GOAL	VALUE/ATTRIBUTE	GOAL
School centered	To follow directions	Child centered	To develop agency
Uniformity	To accurately classify	Diversity	To develop a sense of belongingness
Preparation	To develop skills	Life-long learning	To develop an interest
Replicative thinking	To recite knowledge	Critical thinking	To develop knowledge

AUDIENCE

In the last decade, state governmental bodies, professional educational organizations, think-tanks of all political persuasions, and a number of notable CEOs and successful entrepreneurs have called for the radical transformation of the way we "do schooling" in this nation. Proponents of these reform efforts have all reached the same conclusion: Real change in how schools are organized and how teachers teach is wholly dependent on the leadership abilities of the people who sit in main offices.

While there is no disagreement about the critical role leadership plays in any transformational process, the institutional realities of schooling established by governmental and private bodies—mandates, accreditation, certification, safety, and accountability—are in direct opposition to the innovative thinking, dispositions, and practices that these reform proponents promote. This book is aimed at administrators who observe and experience the gap

Standout School Leaders:
Challenging What It Means to Lead offers guidance on how school administrators and potential school leaders can challenge the institutional realities of the schools they lead and develop the kinds of learning experiences described in their school mission statements.

between managing their schools well but falling short of mission-driven goals and values listed in their school mission statements. Standout School Leaders: Challenging What It Means to Lead offers guidance on how school administrators and potential school leaders can challenge the institutional realities of the schools they lead and develop the kinds of learning experiences described in their school mission statements.

WHAT MAKES THIS BOOK DISTINCTIVE

This book is not a how-to guide to become an SSL or a list of research findings on effective school leadership. The book begins with the acknowledgement that school administrators have in their careers mastered the knowledge, skills, and dispositions to manage their schools well—they are administrators good at their jobs. A school that is *doing things well*, however, isn't necessarily *doing the right things*. Each chapter in this book provides answers to questions that school administrators wrestle with and helps them develop tools and strategies to do the *right things*—closing that gap between the *is* and *ought to be* of schooling. Applying these strategies to their own practice will help administrators focus less on smooth man-

A school that is doing things well isn't necessarily doing the right things.

agement (the *what* and *how*) and more on their mission (the *why*), moving them toward becoming SSLs. To help leaders in that endeavor, this book provides practical features and resources.

FEATURES AND BENEFITS

- Chapter openers: Each chapter begins with a description of a fundamental administrative function that is interpreted and performed in differing ways by SSLs and AGJs.
- Conversation excerpts: The opening of each chapter brings the reader into school office conversations where SSLs and AGJs present their opposing philosophies on the *what*, *why*, and *how* of schooling.
- Vignettes: Throughout the chapters the reader is presented with managerial and leadership scenarios that school administrators face every day. Each situation calls upon an administrator to make an institutional or mission-driven response. As the reader progresses from chapter to chapter, a pattern of behaviors emerges showing the differing managerial and leadership responses of SSLs and AGJs.

- Figures and tools: Throughout the book readers will find several tables and figures that summarize the key managerial and leadership concepts presented in each chapter. These figures serve as practical tools that school leaders can reference when applying the managerial and leadership practices developed in each chapter.
- SSL tips: Each chapter ends with an insight into how SSLs think differently about the goals and practices of schooling.
- Reflective questions: These questions help readers reflect on the content of the chapter and invite the reader to apply the insights of the chapter to their own practices and school sites.
- End-of-chapter resources: Each chapter provides the reader with resources that elaborate on the managerial and leadership concepts developed in the chapter.

All of these features provide readers with abbreviated versions of the managerial and leadership concepts developed in each chapter. They serve as practical and applicable tools that school leaders can immediately apply to improve their practice.

CHAPTER 1

BEING GOOD AT THE JOB

n this chapter I discuss how simply ensuring smooth school operations is not enough to stand out. The conversations that follow illustrate seven essential managerial functions that all AGJs master and perform on a daily basis—necessary to demonstrate managerial competence, but insufficient for becoming an SSL.

Principal to Class of 2025 (Communication)	"Welcome to our first open house. Mr. Davies will provide you with the schedule we will follow tonight. Before we proceed with tonight's activities, I want to take a few minutes to discuss our staff's commitment to excellence. In my last newsletter, I described several initiatives we have undertaken to raise the academic bar in our school. Among those that we believe show the most promise is the adoption of our online student gradebook program.
	"Additionally, in our classrooms tonight you will hear references to our Central High Scholar program. This program is designed to provide all students with the technologies and tutorial services they will need to meet the criteria for becoming a Central High scholar. I've asked several Central High scholars to make a brief presentation during our break about the programs that most helped them achieve academic excellence."
Board Member to Principal (Organization)	"Dr. Lorenzo, I would like to commend you on providing all our students with full schedules on the first day of school. As you know, in the past we have had too many students in the counselor's office on the first day of school waiting to be scheduled for classes they registered for."
Principal to Parent (Outreach)	"Hope to see you at our spring booster barbecue event. Great ribs and, as always, our booster chairperson, Mary, will put together the best silent raffle in the conference."

(Continued)

(Continued)

Union Representative to Principal (Mediation) Parent to Principal (Negotiation)	"Dr. Lorenzo, would you consider moving Ms. Jane Ferguson to the media center? I recognize the problems she is having in the classroom, but she has always been a loyal, dependable, and tireless educator." "Dr. Lorenzo, would it be possible to use the gym one night a week for our community soccer league? Our league can't afford to pay the fees for park district facilities. I know some of our varsity teams have these facilities scheduled year-round, but our league gives our Latino youth an opportunity to participate in a worthwhile after-school activity."
Principal's Post to the Faculty Page on Facebook (Cheerleading)	The halls of Central High are buzzing with excitement as we kick off another fantastic year! Whether you're a returning student or one of our new Panthers, we're thrilled to have you as part of our incredible community. This year, we're setting the stage for success with our theme: "Leading with Panther pride!" Let's bring our energy, enthusiasm, and commitment to make this year our best one yet. Together, we'll inspire, challenge, and achieve greatness. Here's to a year filled with Panther pride, growth, and endless possibilities! Go Panthers! Together growth, and endless possibilities!
Superintendent to Board of Education (Personalization)	"I'd like to congratulate Principal Lorenzo on acquiring and implementing our new finance management software package. With this program in place, we now have a process for cost-effective decision-making."

BEING VERY GOOD AT YOUR JOB

The introduction to this book presented the idea that while there are many football coaches—and school administrators—who are good at the job, there are very few who stand out. Here I summarize the knowledge and skills that all school administrators must possess and enact on a daily basis to be perceived by the school community as doing the job well. Mastering these skills is no small feat; being an AGJ is a great achievement. However, while these skills are necessary for demonstrating managerial proficiency, they are not enough to become an SSL. In fact, if they are not moderated, they can become enemies to standout school leadership.

Communication

AGJs are effective communicators. They use a variety of methods to communicate their message to the stakeholders in the school community. They assure parents, faculty, and students that their school has high standards of excellence. They share ideas and plans and invite these stakeholders to be participants. They discuss the structures that are in place to ensure that the school embraces diversity and provides a safe environment for all. To become an SSL, however, administrators must do more than this. Aspiring SSLs author and communicate the particulars of these qualities of schooling. These particulars might include innovative instructional programs, inventive measures to address problematic programs, or overhauls of poorly functioning building systems. Taking these extra steps will help AGJs stand out.

Organization

AGJs are effective implementers. They pay close attention to the efficient and effective operations of the systems that parents and the district depend upon. Buses arrive on time, student schedules are correct, school events are executed well, the school facility is clean and orderly, budgets are balanced, reports are filed on time, and all state rules and regulations are followed. Each of these schoolwide functions is the result of well-established managerial tasks designed to comply with directives arriving in a main office inbox. To become an SSL, administrators must do more than ensure the smooth running of these logistical processes. Aspiring SSLs redesign organizational systems that are serving as obstacles to achieving mission-driven goals or entangling students and parents in bureaucratic mazes. SSLs are careful not to allow the institutional values of efficiency and order to overshadow the educational values of developing the individual abilities, talents, and interests of diverse student populations. SSLs create engaging educational experiences. Taking this extra step will help AGJs stand out.

Outreach

AGJs are effective at public relations. Main offices have formal channels of communication such as newsletters, webpages, and scheduled community events to inform the public of the goals, programs, and activities most valued by parents. Most administrators, however, choose informal channels for communicating these goals, programs, and activities. The favored informal channel is through working public gatherings. Circulating during various social functions, principals greet parents with a narrative that goes something like this:

John, so glad to see you! I know your work schedule makes it difficult to attend these games. Your son Dan had a great season! His last-minute shot last week put us into the regionals. I see he's

active in our Model United Nations program. We started that program last year to balance out our offerings in the humanities department. Hope to see you at the spring booster barbecue event. Great ribs and, as always, our booster chairperson, Mary, has put together the best silent raffle in the conference.

At the end of these parent gatherings, AGJs have achieved the goal of putting a human face to what often appears to be a faceless bureaucracy. To become an SSL, administrators must do more than this. Aspiring SSLs use these informal gatherings as opportunities to *listen* for "sticking points" in their school's organizational structure or instructional program that are

Aspiring SSLs use these informal gatherings as opportunities to listen for "sticking points" in their school's organizational structure or instructional program that are serving as barriers to developing the individualities of students or that marginalize the participation of differing demographic groups in the community.

serving as barriers to developing the individualities of students or that marginalize the participation of differing demographic groups in the community (see vignette titled "Enhancing Engagement With Dual Open Houses"). They move those sticking points to the top of their personal calendars and to the top of team meeting agendas to create educational environments conducive to developing the individualities of diverse student populations. Taking these extra steps will help AGJs stand out.

ENHANCING ENGAGEMENT WITH DUAL OPEN HOUSES

Maria Dominquez (community outreach director) and Theodore Wallace (principal)

Ms. Dominguez: Dr. Wallace, would you be open to setting up a separate open

house for our Spanish-speaking families?

Principal Wallace: What's the problem with our current open house?

Ms. Dominguez: The format works very well for most of our school community,

but not so well for our Spanish-speaking families. That's why their

attendance at our open house nights is low.

Principal Wallace: What would you suggest?

Ms. Dominguez: Our community is much more comfortable in a more informal

setting.

Principal Wallace: Informal setting?

Ms. Dominguez:

Well, some Hispanic parents are uncomfortable with the formality of the night: walking to classrooms every ten minutes, following a bell schedule, and formal presentations by teachers in a language they often don't understand well. It just doesn't work for our community."

Principal Wallace:

Well, what would work?

Ms. Dominguez:

After brainstorming at the Bilingual Department meeting, we identified an open house format that prioritizes effective communication with our parents. We could hold the open house in the media center. There's enough room to accommodate a seating area and open areas where parents have an opportunity to visit with neighbors, friends, and relatives. We would set up tables by the computer room for a potluck dinner before the presentation. Bilingual program teachers Julio Garcia and Margaret Johnson have volunteered to make a presentation on the goals of the program and recommendations on how parents could support their children's schooling. Several teachers from the regular academic program, along with teachers in the Bilingual Department, would sit at tables near the TV studio to answer questions about their courses and, if asked, report to parents on their children's progress. Several faculty members and students from our Spanish classes have volunteered as translators. Oh, one more thing, Dr. Wallace: Mrs. Ashanti from the Home Economics Department said students from her childcare course would provide a babysitting service for the night."

Principal Wallace:

Ms. Dominguez, you've certainly done your homework on this. While I see the need for such a night and applaud you for all the work you put into planning it, let me tell you about the obstacles that I'll face if I try to do this. First, I have at least three board members who feel that we shouldn't even have a bilingual program in our school. They firmly believe that learning a second language is best achieved by full immersion in the language of the host country. Secondly, I know I will have faculty members who will question a program that appears to support a 'separate but equal status' for our Hispanic students. Just recently, the mayor made several comments in our local press questioning signs and advertisements for local merchants that are in Spanish.

Ms. Dominguez:

I know you are a strong supporter of our program. I don't want to put you in a bad position with the board or faculty, but I know you're concerned about the lack of attendance of Hispanic parents at school events. I was just looking for ways to bring my community back into the school. Maybe we can work at softening up the critics this year and plan for next year's open house.

(Continued)

(Continued)

Principal Wallace: No, Ms. Dominguez, we'll do a bilingual open house this year.

I'll call it a pilot program. Let me get the ball rolling with the space and furniture arrangements. You seem to have done the heavy lifting with the program. I'll get a letter to parents in your

community about the changes in the program.

Ms. Dominguez: No need for the letter. I'll spread the word to the families and the

teachers in the Bilingual Department can talk to their students

about the program change.

Principal Wallace: Ms. Dominguez, thanks again for all the thought and planning that

went into reformatting our open house to increase participation by

our Hispanic families.

Ms. Dominguez: Dr. Wallace, I can't believe this happening! Oh, one more thing, do

you think we could have mariachi band perform at the end of the evening? We have several really good bands in our community.

Principal Wallace: Let's think about the band for next year.

Mediation

AGJs are effective peacekeepers. The entire professional infrastructure of public schooling in this country is grounded in the beliefs, values, and practices of a bureaucratic model of schooling that is perfectly suited to satisfy institutional goals: standardization, compliance, and documentation. However, these functions are not well suited to achieving educational goals: interests, agency, and critical thinking.

The gap between educational goals and institutional realities generates daily conflicts between organizational structures designed to routinize and instructional programs designed to honor the diverse interests, talents, and lifestyles of their student bodies. When these conflicts disrupt organizational and instructional routines, AGJs employ a variety of work-around strategies that soften the rough edges of bureaucratic schooling, such as offering extra time, extra credit, or extra help. To become an SSL, adminis-

SSLs are careful not to allow the softening of bureaucratic rough edges to interfere with maintaining a safe and orderly school environment.

trators must do more than this—they must openly acknowledge the existence of these rough edges and enact specific administrative measures to smooth them. Aspiring SSLs reconcile institutional goals with practices that enhance the individual interests, talents, and abilities of staff and students. SSLs are careful not

to allow the softening of bureaucratic rough edges to interfere with maintaining a safe and orderly school environment. Taking these extra steps will help AGIs stand out.

Negotiation

AGJs are effective diplomats. Every school district is packed with special interest groups competing for limited resources. In addition to the special interest groups of the school community, an array of local and state governmental agencies, community groups, professional organizations, and private vendors also influence different segments of the school organization.

AGJs keep all these groups invested in the goals and operations of the school by manipulating different resource variables—time, space, personnel, materials, and fundraising activities—to create an image of perceived fairness among all interest groups. To become an SSL, administrators must do more than just engage in this political gamesmanship. Aspiring SSLs must make a distinction between the equal distribution of resources and the distribution of resources based on the different circumstances of the groups they serve. SSLs aim to distribute resources in ways that provide different groups the opportunities to reach equal outcomes. SSLs are careful not to allow their redefinition of fairness to be perceived by the school community as favoring certain groups or activities.

Motivators

AGJs are effective motivators. Teachers do not work well in environments that are externally controlled and competitive. AGJs translate teacher distaste for being supervised and rated into superficial dispositions that will make them a "good boss" in the eyes of their faculty (see Resource 1.1 for examples of these superficial dispositions). To become an SSL, administrators must do more than cater to teachers' need for approval. Aspiring SSLs are sensitive to the social, emotional, and intellectual harm that poor teaching can inflict on children and adolescents. Establishing performance standards and helping staff continually improve to meet those standards will make AGJs stand out.

Personalization

AGJs are effective optimizers. They recognize and harness their unique personal and professional interests—what I term bents (see Resource 1.2). A particular administrator's bent may come in handy for resolving a school-wide problem that established managerial tools have failed to fix. To become an SSL, however, administrators must do more than focus on their own interests. Aspiring SSLs must consider both their own bents and the bents of their colleagues and optimize them to directly advance the educational mission of schooling. Taking this extra step will help AGJs stand out.

SSL TIP

Why Being Good at Your Job Is Not Good Enough

There is no question that these managerial tasks and functions are essential for doing things right. Like AGJs, SSLs accept the necessity of performing well the managerial tasks and functions summarized in this chapter. SSLs, however, stand out from their colleagues by asking, "Are we doing the right things?" Listed here are the types of value-added questions that an SSL would ask regarding the managerial functions they perform each day:

- Will raising the academic bar in the school create learning environments that enhance the diverse interests, talents, and abilities of children and adolescents?
- Will well-choreographed social events signify a caring and respectful learning environment?
- Will attendance at social gatherings advance the educational goals of the school?
- Will the adoption of learning standards compensate for monotonous teaching regimes?
- Will allocation of resources represent equal opportunities for all community groups?
- Will high staff morale result in high staff performance?
- Will the effective implementation of programs symbolize a quality educational program?

These are the responses that SSLs might formulate for these valued-added questions:

- Moving a struggling teacher into a nonteaching position would maintain high teacher morale at the expense of compromising established classroom performance standards.
- The focus on *compliance* with accountability mandates would come at the expense of fulfilling the *substance* of the mandates.
- The focus on raising student test scores would come at the expense of creating learning experiences that would enhance the diverse talents, abilities, and interest of children and adolescents.

These answers would identify which managerial functions are worth pursuing and which should be modified or abandoned. The remaining chapters in this book will describe how SSLs create organizational and instructional systems that do the right things well.

14

REFLECTIVE QUESTIONS

- 1. As you think about the content of the certification programs you completed, which bents (see Resource 1.2) were emphasized and which bents received little or no attention? Why do you believe these program priorities were established?
- 2. In reviewing your past performance evaluations, what administrative functions received little or no attention? Why do you believe these administrative functions go unnoticed or receive a cursory comment?
- 3. Recent surveys of job satisfaction of principals found that a majority expressed frustration with their inability to spend more time on supervising instruction. They cited the following reasons for their inattention to classroom supervision: putting out fires, complying with district and governmental directives and mandates, and managing operating building systems. If you agree with these survey results, what strategies would you adopt to spend more time on the central mission of schooling—to educate?
- 4. As you think about the various bents of the school leaders in your building, what bents are serving as obstacles to achieving mission-driven goals, and what bents are optimizing those same goals?

RESOURCES

RESOURCE 1.1 BEING A GOOD BOSS

DISPOSITION	STRATEGY	VOCABULARIES
Personable	Formal and informal contacts are laced with references to a teacher's personal and professional backgrounds.	"Bill, I hear your son is going to U of M next year. Great school. Sally in the media center has a daughter at U of M. I took care of the certification problem you were having. You should get something from the county in the next few weeks."
Protective	Complaints lodged against a teacher are handled in manner that relieves the teacher of responsibility for behaviors, decisions, or methods.	"Chuck, I talked to Mrs. Larson and suggested that the comments you made were constructive suggestions for how her son could be more responsible with handing in homework. I did tell her that at times you use colorful language to describe performance issues. In the future, Chuck, I would be careful with the language you use when talking with students and parents."
Complimentary	All demonstrations of going above and beyond normal job responsibilities are praised in both private and community settings.	"Leslie, would you please stand? I want to begin this faculty meeting by recognizing the vital role Leslie played in organizing our annual holiday food pantry program. Because of her efforts, over fifty families in our community observed the holiday season with full pantries. Thank you, Leslie!"
Accepting	Out-of-the-box teaching methodologies are supported and publicly acknowledged.	"Tom, I'm sorry I was unable to catch your human chess board match. I hear the costumes worn by the students and their moves brought Shakespeare alive."
Rewarding	School community members who assume a role in achieving a schoolwide goal receive some form of compensation for their efforts.	"Bob, thank you for attending those county school improvement sessions. I am using some grant monies to compensate you for your time."
Deferential	School community members with special expertise are held in high regard.	"Before we go any further with this new reading program, let's bring in Barbara. I respect the sales representative we have, but, when it comes to reading, I listen to Barbara."
Entertaining	Throughout the school year, a variety of activities from Donut Friday to Faculty Frolics are put on to boost faculty morale.	"At our next faculty meeting, we will begin with a new program called FISH. I won't go into details now. But next month be prepared to shed some of those professional worries and just play for a couple of minutes."

RESOURCE 1.2 BENTS

ТҮРЕ	ACTIVITIES	VOCABULARIES
The builder	 Walk-arounds/tours Design meetings Contractor meetings Site visits Bid submissions Finance meetings Referendum meetings 	 Needs assessment Risk assessment Timelines Budgets Drawings Punch lists Levies District funds
The climber	 Listening tours Strategic plans Presentations Adoption of programs Administrative reorganization Conference attendance 	 Five-year contracts Compensation package Networking District size Signing bonus In-state certification The program/technique of the day (zero-based budgeting, differentiated learning, etc.)
The collaborator	NetworkingBusiness partnershipsLearning communitiesRetreats	ConsensusStakeholdersReconnectingPartnering
The communicator	 Newsletters Press releases Listening tours Community walks Social media (blogs, web pages) Special events Sponsorships Polling 	 Talking points Spokesperson Target audience Customer Pitch Publics

www.corwin.com

(Continued)

(Continued)

TYPE	ACTIVITIES	VOCABULARIES
The educator	 Instructional worldview Writing/adopting curriculum Adoption of teaching model Staff development Learning communities Research Reflection on practice 	 Themes, big questions, big ideas Pedagogies Teaching Facilitating Coaching Assessment Frameworks Alignment
The enforcer	 Student code of conduct Dean's office Referrals Disciplinary contracts Supervision Police liaison officer 	 Infractions Detention Suspension Expulsion Alternative placements Zero tolerance Surveillance
The financier	 District budget Writing grants Negotiating Writing contracts Soliciting vendors Supervising audits Purchasing services/materials Bidding Preparing financial statements 	 Funding formulas Levies Revenues Expenditures Cash management Cost projections Insurance Auditors Operations Services Contracts Payroll Lowest bid
The governor	 Policies Systems Job descriptions Budgets Strategic plans Performance reviews 	GoalsProtocolsTouching baseTimelinesConsultantCabinet

18

ТҮРЕ	ACTIVITIES	VOCABULARIES
The innovator	 Framing Inventing/experimentation Reimagining Troubleshooting Championing Connecting 	 Disrupting Reinventing Redesigning Paradigms Inflection points Empowering Passionate Thinking out of the box
The technocrat	 Employ specialists/ consultants Develop merit pay systems Establish measurable outcomes Establish value-added measures/evaluation instruments Establish data-driven instructional program 	 Total quality management (TQM) Data mining/data driven Benchmarks Accountability Rubrics/algorithms
The technologist	 Needs assessment Write a tech plan Solicit vendors Employ IT personnel Inventory Purchase/allocate software District adoption of technologies Attend tech conferences 	 Infrastructure Memory/storage Fifth, sixth, etc. generation Networking Hardware Software The cloud Firewalls